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September 3, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to retroactively enter into a subgrant with the New
Hampshire Public Defender (Vendor #155941 B001), in an amount not to exceed $50,000, from
the United States Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (Byrne JAG) appropriation for the purpose of
supporting a social worker to work with defendants in drug-related cases, effective July 1, 2024
through June 30, 2025 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

)
b

Funding is available as follows:

02-20-20-201510-4458 . ' FY 2025

Byme JAG _

072-500575, Grants Federal $50,000
EXPLANATION

This item is retroactive to July 1, 2024, because the completed contract was not received
at the Department of Justice in time for review and-signatures prior to the June 26, 2024
Governor and Executive Council meeting and there were delays in assuring all required
documents were included in the submission of the subgrant for Governor and Executive Council
approval. ) '

The Department of Justice requests authorization to award a subgrant to the New
Hampshire Public Defender. The funds will be utilized to support a Master Social Work
Advocate (MSW) whose primary mission will be to assist public defender clients in obtaining in-
patient or intensive outpatient treatment for drug addiction.

Telephone 603-271-3658 + FAX 603-271-2110 + TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable-Council

September 3, 2024
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The Byrne JAG Grant Program is a federal formula grant the Department of Justice
receives for the purpose of supporting law enforcement initiatives. One requirement for the
grant is the forrulation and implementation of a five-year strategic plan. In December 2018, the
Department of Justice formed a steering committee. Members of the committee represented law
enforcement, prosecution, courts, public defenders, corrections, parole and probation, and reentry
services.

The Byrne JAG steering committee formed a strategic plan and defined needs for funding
that would best benefit the state. Committee members voted to continue with drug interdiction,
by continuing to fund the New Hampshire Department of Justice Drug Task Force and to provide
funds to the New Hampshire Public Defenders Office for a MSW.

The MSW works with treatment providers throughout New Hampshire and identifies
housing options for public defender clients struggling with drug addiction. The MSW position
also assists in helping public defender clients meet court ordered requirements. In addition, this
position will supervise up to seven social worker interns providing additional services to public
defender clients. ' '

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. -

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your

consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

o7l

M. Formella
Attorney General

#4667773
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FORM NUMBER G-I (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL. PROVISIONS
1. Identification and Definitions.
1.1. State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice 1 Granite Place South, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Grantee Name 1.4, Grantee Address
New Hampshire Public Defender 10 Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone # | 1.6, Account Number | L7. Completion Date | 1.8. Grant Limitation
02-20-20-201510-4458-072- ‘

(603) 224-1236 00578 06/30/2025 $50,000
1| 1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency | 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
Kathleen Carr (603) 271-3658

If Grantee is a municipality or viltage district: "By.signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meeling requirement for scceptance o grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

W A i [
Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

na )u{ %‘/) Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3
. . 2 ‘g 1'
1. tate Agency Signature(s) l.Mi. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
Kathbien (an ~ Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration
1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: SM p&%ﬂtb Assistant Attorney General, On: 8714,2024

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: _ _ ) On: I

2. SCOPE OF WORK: [n exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafier referred to as “the State™), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee™), shall perform that work identified and

rore particulacly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referfed 1o as “the Project™).

Page | of 40
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34,

5.5.

12.

8.1

32

83,

9.1,

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specificafly provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with cespect 10, the State of New
Hampshire. )

EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT,

This Agreement, and all obfigations of the parties hereunder, shall became
cffective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Govemor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required {block 1.16), or upen
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1,14 (“the Effective Date™).
Except as othenwise specifically provided herein. the Project, including all reports
required by this Agresment, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as “the Completion Date™),

RANT AMOUNT; LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.
The Grant Amount is identified and more particutarly described in EXHIRIT C,
attached hereto. )

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set lorth in EXHIBITC.

In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration
of the satisfaclory performance of the Projgct, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Gramt Amount, The State shall withhold (rom the amount otherwise
payable to the Grarlee under this subparapraph 5.3 those sums required, or
pemitted, 1o be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA £0:7 through 7-c.

The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantse in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation 1o the Grantee far the Project, The Statz shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.

Notwithstanding anythig in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
mexpected circumstances. in no event shall the tota) of all payments autharized,
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitztion set forth in block 1.8 of
these general provisions,

COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In
cannection with the performance of the Praject, the Grantes shall comply with alt
statutes. laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations ot duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and 2|l necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b,
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS:

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency. the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of adminisiration, transpsrtation,
insurance,.telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such zccounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, untess otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normat business hours, and os
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shafl make available to the State all
recards pertaining (o maners covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permii the Stale 1o audit. examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all contracts, invoices, materlals, payrolls, records of persannel, data (as that
term is hereinafter defined), and other informption relaténg to all matters covared
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, “Grantee” includes all persans,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identilied as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL. )

The Granige shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary 1o perform
the Project  The Grantee warranits that all personnel engaged in ihe Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
1o perform such Project under all applicable laws.

The Grantee shall nat hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
orother person, firm or corporation with whom it'is engaged in a combined effort
1o perform the Project, o hire-any person who has 2 contractual relaticnship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employce, elected or appointed,

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hercunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Gramt
Officer, and hissher decision on any dispute, shall be final.

DATA: RETENTION QF DATA; ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all information and things
developed or obtained during. the performance of, or acquited or developed by
reason of, this Agreement. including. but not limited 1o, all swdies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions. drawings, analyses, graphic representations,

9.2,

93.

94,

9.5,

1.
[k,
1.1
.12
1L1.3
1114
12

11.2.1

11.22

1123
.24

12,
12.1.

122,

123,

124,
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compuier programs, computer printouts, nates, lefters. memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished,

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by il unrestricted aceess to all data for
examination, duplication, publicatian, ranslation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpese whatsoever

No data shall be subject to capyright in the United States or any ather country by
anyone other then the State,

On and after the Effective Date o) data, and any propeny which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for tha purpose under this
Agteement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumed to the Siate
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reasen, whichever
shall first oceur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in pan, all data

CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anyihing

this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,

without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availakility or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be lizble for any payments hereunder in excess of such avaifable or appropriated
funds, In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the Siate shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES.

Any onre or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitan:
an event of defsull hereunder (hescinafter referred to as “Events of Default™);
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or

Failure 10 submit any report required hereunder; or

Failure to maintain, or permit access (0, the records required hereundar: or
Failure 1o petform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Apreement.
Upon the aecurrence of any Event of Default, the State may 1ake any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions;

Give the Grantee a written nolice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
1o be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default 1s not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee netice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments o be made under this Agresment and ordering that the portion of the
Gran’ Amount which would otherwise sccrue to the Graniee during the period
from the date of such notice until such fime as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid 10 the Grantee: and
Set ofTagaimst any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default and

Trenl the agreement as breached and pursue any of'its remediés at law or in equiry.
or bath.

TERMINATION.

In the event el any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the complelion of the Project, the Grantee shalt deliver to the Grant Officer, not
fater than fifleen {15) days after the dale of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the “Temnination Report™) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amountcarned, (o and including the date of termination
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termimation Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under parageaphs 10 or 124 of these peneral
provisions, the approval of such 2 Termination Repon by the State shall in no
cvent relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
mcurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of s obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in 1his Agreement to the contrary, esther the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days wrilten notice,
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and ro representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the goveming body of he lecality or localiies in which the Project is to be
performed, wha exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or

Subrecipient Initials gﬁ'{"

Date



16.

17,
171

17.1.1

17.12

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall pariicipate in 17.2.

any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest

or the interest of any carporation, parmership, or association in which he or she

is directiy or indirectly interested, nor shall ke or she have any personal or
pecuniary inlerest, direct or indirecy, in this Agreement or the proceeds thersof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18,
the Granteg are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents

nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of iis officers,
employees, agents, members, subcantractors ar subprantees, shall have authority

to hind the State nor are they entiled 1o any of ke benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19
othenwise tmasfer sny interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consentt of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subrontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the Stae, 20.
INDEMNIEICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indsmnify and hold harmless

the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered

by the Siate, iis officers and employees, and any and all claims. Habilities or
penatics asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf 21,
of any persen, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise owt of) the aets or amissions of the Grantee or
subconiractor, of subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State,
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement, 2.

INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall; at its own expense, ebiain and maintain in force, or shall 23..

require any subcontractor, subgrantée or assignee performing Project work to
obléin and mainsain in force, bath for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance: X

Statutory workers’ compensation and employees Mability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged-in the performance of the Project, and

General liability imsurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or praperty
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,060 per occurence and 32,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or.death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and
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The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceplable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State o New Hampshire. Grantee
shall fumish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal{s) of insurance
required under this Ageeement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy

WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Eventorl Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereaf, No such failure of waiver
shall be deemead a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisians hereaf upon any further or other defaull on the part of the Grantee.
MNOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto ta the other party shall be deemed 10 have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by cenified mail, posiage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the panies al the addrasses
first above given,

AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument i writing signed by the parties hereta and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharpe by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding vpon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their [ESPECT VE SUCCessDrs
and assignees. The captions and contents of the “sibject” blank are used only as
amatter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the imtend of the parties hereto

THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend Lo benefit any third partics
and this Agreement shafl not be construed to confer any such benefit,

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, whith may be executed im a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constiwies the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes alf prior
agreements and understandings refating hereto.

SPECIAL PROVISTONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Subrecipient Initials
Date



EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

New Hampshire Public Defender as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as “Subrecipient™)
shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below,
which are subject to annual review.

. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
www.lep.gov.

. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the
Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to.comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C.
§ 11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-
86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§.6101-07). 1t will also comply with
Ex. Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community
Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for

Page 4 of 40
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EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ
implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

. Compensation for individual consuitant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior
approval requests require additional justification.

. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOQJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or
be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly
managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the

grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

. Use of program income

Program income (as defined in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements) must be used in
accordance with the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. Program income

eamnings and expenditures both must be reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report, SF
425.

. The Subrécipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or
information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project.

. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with OJP grant monitoring guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with BJA and OCFO on all grant monitoring requests, including
requests related to desk reviews, enhanced programmatic desk reviews, and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to BJA and OCFO all documentation necessary to complete
monitoring tasks, including documentation related to any subawards made under this award.
Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by BJA and OCFO for

providing the requested documents,
Page 5 of 40
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EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

Failure to cooperate with BJA's'OCFO's grant monitoring activities may result in sanctions
affecting the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to grant funds; referral to the Office of the Inspector
General for audit review; designation of the recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or
termination of an award(s).

. The Subrecipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or

subaward, at any tier) may be used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes
unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any accompanying accessories to support UAS.

The award Subrecipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program
outputs and outcomes. The data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of
Justice Programs.

Submission of eligible records relevant to the National Instant Background Check System

Consonant with federal statutes that pertain to firearms and background checks -- including 18
U.S.C. 922 and 34 U.S.C. ch. 409 -- if the recipient (or any subrecipient at any tier) uses this
award to fund (in whole or in part) a specific project or program (such as a law enforcement,
prosecution, or court program) that results in any court dispositions, information, or other
records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the National Instant
Background Check System (NICS), or that has as one of its purposes the establishment or
improvement of records systems that contain any court dispositions, information, or other
records that are-"eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS, the
recipient (or subrecipient, if applicable) must ensure that all such court dispositions,
information, or other records that are “eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to
the NICS are promptly made available to the NICS or to the "State" repository/database that is
electronically available to (and accessed by) the NICS, and -- when appropriate -- promptly
must update, comrect, modify, or remove such NICS-relevant “eligible records".

In the event of minor and transitory non-compliance, the recipient may submit evidence to
demonstrate diligent monitoring of compliance with this condition (including subrecipient
compliance). DOJ will give great weight to any such evidence in any express written
determination regarding this condition.

Page 6 of 40
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EXHIBIT A
-~ SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

[3. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement

14.

contract that would exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,
$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract” {and therefore does not
consider a subaward),

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach ina
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at .
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Spec:f" ic
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorpotated by reference here.

Restrictions on "lobbying”

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or-any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support
or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at
any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable
federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to
influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of
any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement,
subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respeéct to actions such as renewing,

extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352, Certain exceptions to this law
apply, including an exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient {or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to

contact QJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of
0JP,

Page 7 of 40
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

15. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreerents and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient (“subgrantee”) under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any
employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that
prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance
with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a
federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award,
to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other

form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

I. In accepting this award, the recipient—-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or conttactors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt
written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. Ifthe Subrccipient doés or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may
or will receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement
contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has

Subrecipient Initials
Date !
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required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to

prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse
as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to
support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or
subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its
employees or contractors to execuite agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or
by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making
this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

17.

The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tier) must have written procedures in place to
respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach” (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates,
discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal
information system"” (OMB Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a
requirement to report actual or imminent breach of P11 to an OJP Program Manager no later
than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal ldentifier
Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable

requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of
information in SAM.
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The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to
first-tier subrempnents (first-tier "subgrantees"); mcludmg restrictions on subawards to entities

that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a
natural person (i.e., unrelateéd to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may
own or operate in his or her name).

1

Requirements related to "de minimis” indirect cost rate s

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to
use the "de minimis” indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and
its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs
{MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The remplent and any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees” of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduet related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related
to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate
award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

Page 10 of 40
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20. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ")
may detérmine that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements
otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions regarding enforcement, including any
such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during the period of
performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal
Notices: Special circumstances as to particular award conditions"

(ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and incorporated by reference into
the award.,

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the Subrecipient, the authorized recipient
official accepts all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally
executed by the authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or
on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full
below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to
conduct during the award period -- may result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to
the recipient and the award, Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow
costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other legal action
as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to
this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal
prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, andfor 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273),
and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims
or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Shiould any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by
its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximutm effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly
invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

Page 11 of 40
Subrecipient Initials M

Date Jﬂﬁrf:_lf



21.

22,

23.

24.

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS ~

Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The Subrecipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner
(including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other
applicable written guidance. Data.collection supports compliance with the Government

Perforimance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other
applicable laws.

Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable
statutes, regulations, award conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include
the applicable conditions of this award in any subaward. Among other things, the recipient is
responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of specific outcomes and
benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,

upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under
this award,

Required data on law enforcement agency training

Any law enforcement agency receiving direct or sub-awarded funding from this JAG award
must submit quarterly accountability metrics data related to training that officers have
received on the use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive
engagement with the public.

Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the
DOIJ Office of the Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee,
agent, subrecipient, contraclor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds
under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a
criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or
similar misconduct.
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Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OlG by--( 1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
https:/foig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online™); (2) mail
directed to: U.S. D‘Iepartment of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations
Division, ATFTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530;
and/or (3) by facsimile directedto the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee
Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at
https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered)-to a.new Title 34, entitled
"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of
statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements),
including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory
provision that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the 1U.S. Code is to be read as a
reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction
specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in material
incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award
requirements.

Recipients utilizing award funds for forensic genealogy testing must adhere to the United
States Department of Justice Interim Policy Fprerqsic Genealogical DNA Analysis and
Searching (https:'i.f‘www.‘justice.govfolpfpagefﬁlgﬂ204386fdownload), and must céllect and
report the metrics identified in Section 1X of that documient to BJA.

Recipient integrity and perf'orménce matters: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must.comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of

information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected
to the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
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procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and
performance system {currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system {currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are posted on the QJP
web site at https:/fojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition: Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorporated by
reference here,

Protection of human research subjects

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28
C.F.R, Part 46 and all OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research
subjects, including obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and
subject informed consent.

Potential imposition of additional requirements

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by
the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for

_this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk.
“grantee list.

OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier -- develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training
Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-
subgrantees.

Page 14 of 40
Subrecipicnt Initials ]

Date ® 'l fq




31,

32.

33.

34.

35.

'EXHIBIT A
-'SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

Justification of ¢onsultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval-of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per
day, A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the QJP program office
prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

Justice Information Sharing

Information sharing projects funded under this award must comply with DOJ's Global Justice
Information Sharing Initiative (Global) guidelines. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any
tier) must conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all constituent elements, where
applicable, as described at: hitps:/it.ojp.gov/gsp_grantcondition. The recipient (and any
subrecipient at any tier) must document planned approaches to information sharing and
describe compliance with the GSP.and appropriate privacy policy that protects shared
information, or provide detailed justification for why an alternative approach is recommended.

In accepting this award, the Subrecipient agreées that grant funds cannot be used for Facial
Recognition Technology (FRT) unless the recipient has policies and procedures in place to
ensure that the FRT will be utilized in an appropriate and responsible manner that promotes

‘public safety, and protects privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties and complies with all

applicable provisions of the U.S. Constitution, including the Fourth Amendment’s protection
against unreasonable searches and seizures and the First Amendment’s freedom of association
and speech, as well as other laws and regulations. Recipiénts utilizing funds for FRT must
make such policies and procedures available to DOJ upon request.

[f award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA
profiles must be uploaded to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database
operated by the FBI) by a'government DNA laboratory with access-to-CODIS. No profiles
generated under this award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA
database without prior express written approval from BJA. Award funds may not be used for
the purchase of DNA equipmeint and supplies unless the resulting DNA profiles may be
accepted for-entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency

to ensure all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA
Booking Operational Procedures Manual).

FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards
("subgrants") of $30,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total
compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier
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subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient obligations,
which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006
(FFATA), are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA htm

(Award condition: Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation), and are incorporated
by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less
than $30,000, or (2) an award made to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., “unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she 'may own or
operate in his or her name).

Extreme risk protection programs funded by JAG must include, at 2 minimum: pre-
deprivation and post-deprivation due process rights that prevent any violation or infringement
of the Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of Rights, and the
substantive or procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and as
interpreted by State courts and United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the
United States). Such programs must include, at the appropriate phase to prevent any violation
of constitutional rights, at minimum, notice, the right to an in-person hearing, an unbiased
adjudicator, the right to know opposing evidence, the right to present evidence, and the right
to confront adverse witnesses; the right to be represented by counsel at no expense to the
government; pre-deprivation and post-deprivation heightened evidentiary standards and proof
which mean not less than the protections afforded to a similarly situated litigant in Federal
court or promulgated by the State's evidentiary body, and sufficient to ensure the full
protections of the Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of
Rights, and the substantive and procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and
Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and
as interpreted by State courts and United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the
United States). The heightened evidentiary standards and proof under such programs must, at
all appropriate phases to prevent any violation of any constitutional right, at minimum,
prevent reliance upon evidence that is unsworn or unaffirmed, irrelevant, based on

inadmissible hearsay, unreliable, vague, speculative, and lacking a foundation; and penalties
for abuse of the program.

Expenditures prohibited without waiver

No funds under this award may be expended on the purchase of items prohibited by the JAG
program statute, unless, as set forth at 34 U.S.C. 10152, the BJA Director certifies that
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extraordinary and exigent circumstances exist, making such expenditures essential to the
maintenance of public safety and good order.

Establishmient of trust fund

If award funds are being drawn down in advance, the recipient (or a subrecipient, with respect
to a subaward) is required to establish a trust fund account. Recipients (and subrecipients)
must maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest-bearing accounts, unless
regulatory exclusions apply (2 C.F.R. 200.305(b)(8)). The trust fund, including any interest,
may not be used to pay debts or expenses incurred by other activities beyond the scope of the
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG). The recipient also agrees
to obligate the award funds in the trust fund (including any interest earned) during the period
of performance for the award and expend within 90 days thereafter. Any unobligated or
unexpended funds, including interest earned, must be returned to QJP at the time of closeout.

Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course-of performing work funded by this award, and to
establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to
decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers,

Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)
properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent

with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be
involved in activities under this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

Page 17 of 40
Subrecipient Initials
Date



EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS ~

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it
unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated
provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Reguirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to
compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention
requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The‘reci;iien_t's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs-are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to. ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction
A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment.eligibility, the recipient {or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and
use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf

Page 18 of 40

Subrecipient Initials mm
Date “J[1B[2H




41.

42,

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS —

of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify procedures
including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation™ or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to
confirm empioyment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or
will be funded (in-whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States” specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the
Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands,

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any
applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation
otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify
visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before
award acceptance.

Effect of failure to address audit issues

The Subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as

determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly

address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by
the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors
SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the
award (as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ

funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute -- that a purpose of some
or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
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subrecipient at any tier} is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardiess
of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated kﬁy reference here.

Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality
requirements of 34 U,S.C: 10231 and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use,
and revelation of data or information. The recipient further agrees, as a condition of award
approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part
22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

Compliance with National Environmental Policy Act and related statutes

Upon request, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must assist BJA in complying
with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the National Historic Preservation Act,
and other related federal environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of these
award funds, either directly by the recipient or by a subrecipient. Accordingly, the recipient
agrees to first determine if any of the following activities will be funded by the grant, prior to
obligating funds for any of these purposes. If it is determined that any of the following
activities will be funded by the award, the recipient agrees to contact BJA.

The Subrecipient understands that this condition applies to new activities as set out below,
whether or not they are being specifically funded with these award funds, That is, as long as
the activity is being conducted by the recipient, a subrecipient, or any third party, and the
activity needs to be undertaken in order to use these award funds, this condition must first be.
met. The activities covered by this condition are:

a. New construction;

b. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically
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sensitive area, including properties located within a 100-year flood plain, a wetland, or habitat
for endangered species, or a property listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register
of Historic Places;

c. A rénoyation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a) result in
a change in its basic prior-use or (b) significantly change its size;

d. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that
are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b) traditionally used,
for example, in office, household, recreational, or education environments; and

. Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory
operations, including the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine

laboratories.

The:Subrecipient understands and agrees that complying with NEPA may require the
preparation of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as
directed by BJA. The recipient further understands and agrees to the requirements for
implementation of a Mitigation Plan, as detailed at https:/bja.gov/Funding/nepa.html, for
programs relating to methamphetamine laboratory operations.

Application of This Condition to Recipient's Existing Programs or Activities: For any of the
recipient's or its subrecipients' existing programs or activities that will be funded by these
award funds, the recipient, upon specific request from BJA, agrees to cooperate with BJA in

any preparation by BJA of a national or program environmental assessment of that funded

program or activity.

Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2022)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

restrictions on the use of federal funids set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent

restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations
Act, 2022, are set out at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/F Y22 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm,
and are incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (ot a
Subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the
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recipient is to contact QJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior
written approval of QJP.

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54

‘The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any tier, must-comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs.”

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42,

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee"} at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in
Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically
including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and
prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and
requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organization's that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that
pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The téxt of 28-C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations

(currently accessible at https:/www ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to
Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current"” data.

Subrecipient Initials
Date
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49.

50.

51.

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS ~

Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as
posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide” available at
https:/ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences,
meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federa! funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of
food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this
award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide™).

Corr;pliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit,
under specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the
employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and

specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a
federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this
award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for

guidance.
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52.

53.

54.

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -
Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23

With respect to any information technology system funded or supported by funds undet this
award, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with 28 C.F.R. Part 23,
Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be
applicable, Should OJP determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its
discretion, perform audits of the system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28
C.F.R. Part 23 occur, the recipient may be fined as per 34 U.S.C. 10231(c)-(d). The recipient
may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds.

Certification of body armor "mandatory wear" policies, and compliance with NIJ standards

If recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body armor, the recipient must submit a
signed certification that each law enforcement agency receiving body armor purchased with
funds from this award has a written "mandatory wear" policy in effect. The recipient must
keep signed certifications on file for any subrecipients planning to utilize funds from this
award for ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchases. This policy must be.in
place for at least all uniformed officers before any funds from this award may be used by an
agency for body armor. There are no requirements regarding the nature of the policy other
than it be 2 mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be
purchased at any threat level, make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as
the body armor has been tested and found to comply with applicable National Institute of
Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor Model List.
In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the
United States and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)1)(A). The latest
N1J standard information and the N1J Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following
the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: hitps://ni}.ojp.gov/topics/equipment-and-
technology/body-armor.

.

BJA- JAG - Withholding of funds for program narrative
Withholding of funds: Program narrative
The Subrecipient may not expend or draw down any award funds until the recipient submits,

and OJP reviews and accepts, the program narrative for this award, and an Award Condition
Modification has been issued to remove this condition.
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55.

56.

57.

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

The BJA- JAG - Withholding of funds for budget documentation
Withholding of funds: Budget narrative or information

The Subrecipient may not expend or draw down any award funds unti! the recipient submits,
and OJP reviews and accepts, the required budget information or narrative for the award, and
an Award Condition Modification has been issued to remove this condition

Avoidance of duplication of networks

To avoid duplicating existing networks or [T systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for law
enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between
Jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the
communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the recipient can
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost effective or
would impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system.

Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2
C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the
“Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2022 award from QJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014, If this
FY 2022 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number
(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements
apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and
regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are
obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2022 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
OJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain - typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period
applies - and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantec") at any tier) must
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58.

59.

EXHIBIT A
- SPECIAL PROVISIONS ~

provide access, include performance measurement iniformation, in addition to the financial
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2
C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared
or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the
provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP promptly for
clarification.

All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at ahy tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that --
for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- QJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore does not consider a procurement "contract").

The detdils of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web
site at hitps://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Subaward Authorization.htm (Award condition: All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by
reference here.

"Methods of Administration" - monitoring compliance with civil rights laws and
nondiscrimination provisions

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
applicable federal civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions. Within 90 days of the
date of award acceptance, the recipient must submit to OJP's Office for Civil Rights (at
CivilRightsMOA@usdoj.gov) written Methods of Administration ("MOA") for subrecipient
monitoring with respect to civil rights requirements. In addition, upon request by OJIP (or by
another authorized federal agency), the recipient must make associated documentation
available for review.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to Methods of Administration are posted on
the OJP web site at hitps:#/ojp.gov/funding/Explore/StateMethodsAdmin-FY201 7update.htm
(Award condition: "Methods of Admiinistration” - Requirements applicable to States (FY 2017
Update)), and are incorporated by reference here.
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EXHIBIT B
-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
as the State Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for activities
surrounding the purpose of hiring a Social Worker Advocate to assist public defender
clients in obtaining inpatient or intensive outpatient treatment for substance use disorder.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly

report is due on April 15" or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31.

. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documerits upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the
Federal Grant. '

. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommaodate the schedule,

. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
Kathryn Fisher

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

1 Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

(603) 271-1261

Kathryn.E.Fisher@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT C
- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-! section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $50,000 of the
total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Executive Council approval from
07/01/2024 to 06/30/2025, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be
contingent on continued federaf funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may
apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal grant
end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No
extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.
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EXHIBIT D

- EEQP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURAN CES -

I M&[q ,B &g;ﬂkﬁf: ___[responsible official], certify that

New Hampshire Public Defender [Subrecipient] has completed the EEQ reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: https://ojp.gov/iabout/ocr/faq_eeop.htm on
o4y ! 303D  [date]

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

E)Q m ?J\" [official that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at https.//oip.

[date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every

iwo years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process
If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice

or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights | Grants
Managen Unit [ NH Departiment of Justice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process
I further certify that: New Hampshire Public Defender [Subrecipient] will comply with

applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery
of services and has a policy or written procedure in place for accepting discrimination based
complaints from employees and program beneficiaries-and that policy/procedure must be made
publicly available to program beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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CERTIFICATION FORM

Complinnce with the Equz) Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) Requirements
Flease read carefirlly the Instructions (see below) and then complete Section A or Section B or Section C, not all three, If recipienmt

completes Section A or C and sub-g B over 3500,000, in addition, please complete Section D.
Recipient’s Name: PN P I 2K L] 2 !
Address: D Fenly Sweek, Be E(%u, %:‘Q‘_ﬂ% Eiit 0336 |
Is agency a; D Direct or f Sub recipient of OJP, OVW or COPS funding? | Law Enforcement Agency? o Yes arfdo
DUNS Number. 15688 817 "G T Vendor Number (only if direct recipient) ‘
Name and Title of Contact Person: WMav 5. Yl K29, Dice b of r SerVice s
Telephonie Number: 24 - E-Msil Address:  smhawkes nhpd. o

Section A—Declaration Claiming Complete Exemption from the EEOP Requirement
Please check all the following boxes that apply.

o Less than fifly employees. Q Indizn Tribe O Medical lastitutien.
gAonprofit Organization 77 0 Educations] Institution o Receiving & single award(s) less than $25,000.

W B Hoages
:gﬂicinl], certify t ‘ )

[recipient] is not required to prepare an EEOP for the reason(s) checked above, pursuant to 28 C.F.R § 422.302.
[ further certify that ] [recipiens]

[responsible

will comply with applicable federal civil Yights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of
services.

If recipient sub-grants u single award over $3060,000, in addition, please complete Section D
‘ f tf14[22

Ol ¢

Section B—Declaration Claiming Exemption from the EEOP Submission Requirement and Certifying
That an EEOP Is on File for Review

If a recipient agency has fifiy or more emplayees and is receiving a single award or, subaward, of $25,006 or more, but less thar 5500,000, then
the recipient agency does not have to submit an EEOP to the OCR for review ax long as It certifies the following (42 C.F.R. § 42.303);

I, . . [responsible
official], certify that . , : . .

[recipient], which has fifty or more employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less
than $500,000, has formulated an EEOP in accordance with 28 CFR pl. 42, subpt. E. I further centify that within the last
twenty-four months, the proper authority has formulated and signed into ¢ffect the EEOP and, as required by applicable
federal law, it is available for review by the public, employees, the appropriate state planning agency, and the Office for
Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The EEOP is on file at the following office:

[érganization],

[addréss].

Prins or Type Name and Title T —_—— ‘ ) Duste
Section C—Declaration Stating thiat an EEOP Short Form Has Been Submitted to the Office for Civil
Rights for Review

{f areciptent agency has fifly or more employees and Is receiving a single award, or subaward, of $500,000 or more, then the recipieni agency
must send an EEOP Skort Form 1o the OCR for review.

I, o : - . e [responsible
official], certify that ' ] . L e
[recipient], which has fifty or more employees and is receiving a single award of $500,000 or more, has formulated an
EEOP in accordance with 28 CFR pt. 42, subpt, E, and sent it for review on ‘
[date] to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

{f recipient sub-grants a single award over 8500,000, in addition, please complete Section D

L Print or Type Name and Tile o Siguature Dot




EXHIBIT D

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative

agreement, | certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1) [ have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application,

(2) 1 certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) 1 assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;

b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and

¢. the Subrecipient will mainitain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—-

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 US.C. § 6102);

b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title T of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(¢) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b}(13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
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EXHIBIT D
- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURAN CES -

12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;

c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and

d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, | make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

{5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements”) and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - rescarch and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6)[ assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act.of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) 1 assure that the Subrecfpient will give the Department and the Government Accountahility
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the-award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made avaitable (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), | assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to

faculty, or to the general public.
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(9) 1 assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
éemployment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law--including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act--seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, [ assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

1 acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement {or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department’s awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Moy B, Hawkes _Duteckor of Clent Senlces,
ame of'Authorized Signor ‘ Title of Authorized Signor

79,,% 18, 2024

te
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EXHIBIT E

- NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -
Supplanting defined
Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3)
hitp:/fwww.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/part2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The New Hampshire Public Defender (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded through
grant number 15PBJA-22-GG-00628-JAGX shall be used to supplement existing funds for

prograin activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated
for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The New Hampshite Public Defender (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations may

result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this
program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under

this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Sigpar: “m,!% ® ﬁmk_@, E‘l‘td"ﬁf f Clievﬂ' SQNEES

Sign : y.

-
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EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are required to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice (“Department”) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

I. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subrecipient’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and

(¢) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be incliided in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurément contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

Page 34 of 40
Subrecipient Initials
Date:



EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal. law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such- felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (for OJP Subrecipients, to OJP at
Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov),
uniess such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A.If the Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW
at OVW.GFMD(@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(@) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substarnce is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The peénalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as.a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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EXHIBIT F

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with-respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, faw
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implemeritation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

W_&aﬂ_k:s M _of Client Sarites
amk of Authorized Signor itle of Authorized Signor

ignature ate

New Hampshire Public Defender, 10 Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301
Name and Address of Agency
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING
ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE -

The Federal Funding. Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrecipients of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or
after October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant
modifications result in a total award equat to or over $30,000; the award is subject to the FFATA
reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation

Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) WAICS code for contracts /- CFDA progtatn number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five-executives if?
a. ‘More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

i Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subreclplent identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient’s

representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below nameéd Subrecipienit agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to

DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability.
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION -
Hakes Diceetor of Cliont Service <
Name of Authorized Signos Title of Authorized Signor

WJ:’

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, [ certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is: FEJ6VTSOFUH2

2. In your business or-organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 19867

v/ NO : YES :

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION =

Name: Sa;a.h gpjhlﬂln ’Em . Di‘ﬁ Amount: Ial, 560- a7
Name: _ﬂ}u%_m_gé J Dir. ClientSerfices Amount: __ 13Y% ’ 13 Z (&]2,
Name: ME_LM%D , Dif- uﬁsahm Amount: __ DM - 737.00
Name: h DI Amount; %.00

e e

Name: AK%‘L_M’ Amount: IEI A64.00

Qm(—'.iﬂf-
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC
DEFENDER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 06, 1985. [
furiher certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as
far as this office is concerned. .

Business I1D: 83694
Certificate Number: 0006737338

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this TTth.day of July A.D. 2024,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Certificate of Authority

On 34].‘8/12& (date), Sarah Rothman, Executive Director of the New Hampshire Public
Defender (NHPD), authorized and gave full authority to Mary B Hawkes, Director of Client
Services at NHPD, to execute any and all documents necessary to enter into a grant
agreement with the State of New Hampshire Department of Justice. The grant funding
provided in the agreement, in the amount of 50,000 per year, will be used to defray

expenses of employing a social worker to assist NHPD's indigent clients in accessing
substance-use related treatment and resources.

Certified by: %f Date; ﬂjhgz Z‘)th
Sarah Ro%, Executive Director

State of New Hampshire, County of Merrimack

On mjj_l

Sarah Rothman personally appeared before me and made oath that the statements
contained herein are true to the best of her knowledge and belief.

My Commission Expires 8 Z 1 E! 03,

Sighature of Notarial Officer ' n { commssion
i Avguy

----------



Addendum to Certificate of Authority

On July 18, 2024, Sarah Rothman, Executive Director of the New Hampshire Public
Defender (NHPD), authorized and gave full authority to Mary B Hawkes, Director of Client
Services at NHPD, to execute any and all documents necessary to enter into a grant
agreement with the State of New Hampshire Department of Justice. The grant funding
provided in the agreement, in the amount of $50,000 per year, will be used to defray
expenses of employing a social worker to assist NHPD's indigent clients in accessing
substance-use related treatment and resources.

Sarah Rothman hereby certifies that this vote/authority has not been amended or repealed
and remains in full force and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to
which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the
date of this Certificate of Authority.

Certified by _-

Retroactive Effective Date; 7/18/2024
Sarah Roﬁ;éan, Executive Director

Date addendum signed: &IS / ZD‘ZLI

State of New Hampshire, County of Merrimack

Sarah Rothman personally appeared before me and made cath that the statements
contained herein are true to the best of her knowledge and belief.

My Commission Expires m&ﬂﬁa,

\\\\\Hllu“’
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
07/16/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provistons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONTACT  Teri Davis
FAX
CGl Insurance, Inc. Wgﬂrfo Exti: (877) 562-8954 I (AC, Noj: (866) 574-2443
| 5 Dartmouth Drive EMAlL . TDavis@CGIBusinessinsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Auburn NH 03032 INSURERA: Seleclive Insurance Group, Inc. 12572
INSURED insurer B: Ufica National Insurance 25976
New Hampshire Public Defenders, Inc INSURER G : -
10 Ferry St, Ste 202 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Concord NH 03301 INSURERF ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  24-25 Master REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSICNS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
FOLIGY EFF | Y
"Liﬁ? TYPE OF INSURANCE NsD | wvD POLICY NUMBER MMIIJID‘I“YE’E":') (ﬁ%{'}%ﬂawen LIMITS
€| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGCE ¢ 1,000,000
TD
| cLams mape OCCUR - PREMISES {Fa ocounence) | 5 90:000
- MED EXP tAny one persany | 510,000
A $2639580 07/01/2024 | 07/01/2025 | personat aapvivuury | s 1:000.000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE §_3.000,000
soLIcY i Loc PRODUCTS - CoMPioPAGS. |5 3:000.000
OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 1,000,000
| AUTOMOBILE LiABILITY COMBINED }SI:GLE It s
| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) 8
[~ | owNED SCHEDULED ;
A | | AUTosomy e 52639580 07/01/2024 | 07/01/2025 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE Py
|| autos onLy AUTOS ONLY | (Per accicent)
]
| | umBRELLALIAB | | oecur EACH DCCURRENCE s 3,000,090
A EXCESS LIAB CLAMSMABE $2639580 07/01/2024 | 07/01/2025 | pcorccare s 3,000,000
DED | | RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY : SIAIE | = 1,000,000
B |ORFICERMEMBER ey Uaea VTV N/A 5651194 07/01/2024 | 07/01/2025 | EL:EACHACCIDENT e
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE |5 1,000,000
|f yes, describe under 1.000.000
DESCRIPTION CF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoucyLimT [ 1+8U9,

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more spaceIs required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Justice

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

33 Capitol St
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
i
| Goneord NH 03301 ST }&fw‘ .
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25{2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 302022 ang 2021

TOGETHER WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



!

gdale, Livolsi & Wood, P.C.

CERTITIED « PUELIC » ACCOUMNTANIES

Scptember 222, 2022

To the Board of Direclors,
New Hampshire Public Defender:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Public Defendes (a not-profit
organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the relajed

statements of activities, functions! expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 1o the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in alt materiat respects, the financial position of
New Hampshire Public Defender o5 of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the years then ended in aecardance with sccounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements secton of our repont. We are required 1o be independent of New Hampshire Public Defender
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical vequirements velating to our audi.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audis
opinion,

Responsibilities of Management for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of these finzncial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally sccepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of imemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial siatements thet are fres
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial siatements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantis) doubt about New Hampshire Public Defendes’s ability 1o continue
as going concem within one year after the date that the financia) statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities Lor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial statements gs a whole are frec from
material missiatement, whether due to fraud ar emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonzble assurance is  high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guaraniee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepled auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a materia) misstatemeny resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting, from ervor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or.the. ... ...

ovetride of intemal control. Misstatements are cansidered material if there s a substantial likclihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgemem made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

137 Middle Street « Manchester, NH + 03101.1905
Telephone 603-669-3454 » Facsimile 603-647.4500 » www.dugdalecpa.com



In pesforming an audit in accordance with generally.aceepted auditing standards, we;

»  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

*  Identify end nssess the risks of material misststement of the financial statements, whether due 1o firaud or
ervor, and design and perform sudit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures  include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

®  Obtain an understanding of intemal contro) relevant 10 the avdit in order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oa the effeclive ness of
New Hampshire Defendes’s internal control. Accordingly, nb such opinion Is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of significant accaunting
estimates made by management, ss well as evaluate the overal] presentation of the financial siatemens,

¢  Canclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the agaregate, thae raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Public Defender's ability to confinue as going concerny for a
reasonable period of time,

We are required 10 communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, amoun other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, signifiesnt audie findings, end centain internat contral refated matters that we identified
during the audit,

Du?dab Lrtar Uuz,?’c



ASSETS
pi) 1) 2021

Assets
Cash $ 4,940,17) $  4.825156
Government Contract Receivable 25,593,545 .
Deposits and Other Receivables 42,380 43,508
Prepaid Expenses 250,316 544,125
Equipment, Lesschold Improvements and Property Held Under Crpita)
Leases, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 521,134 726,162
Law Library 34,523 34,523

TOTAL ASSETS ] 3[53255‘9 S 6!] 74,480

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Linbitifies
Accounts Payable - State of New Hampshire S - s 728,771
Accounts Payable 52411 130637
Sslaries Payable 567,300 438 100
Payroll Taxes Payable 41,970 32,230
Other Accrued Expenses 113,61 108,332
Accrued Annusl Leave 642,227 679,710
Deferred Revenuc 25,899,032 .

Total Liabilitles s 27,314,611 $ 2,117,780
Net Assets
Without Doner Resmiclions: s 3,215,788 3 3,296,016
With Doror Restrictions 250,170 760,685
Total Net Assety g $ 4,065,958 $ 4,086,101

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S| 59 $ 8,174,481

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

. 2022 2021
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Statc Contract $ 3906773 5 24,119,530
Other Incoms 184,725 3,328,098
Intezest Income o 9,257 17,835
Total Revenues and Gains Without Donot Resirictions 24,180,755 _ 27,465,163
e t It ietions:
Expiration of program restricitons - -
Total Net Assels Released from Resirictions . -
Total Revenues, Gnins and Other Suppon
Without Donor Restrictions 24,100,755 27,465,163
Expences
Program services 22,491,763 21,938,952
Administrative 1,599,733 1,575,297
24:'091‘.498 23,514,249
INCREASE (DECREASE) 1 NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS Y 3.950.914

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONCR RESTRICTIONS
Return 1o State of New Hampshire « Unused Gtim - (728,71)
Reduction in law library

- (30,000
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS - (758,771)
INCREASE (DECREARE) IN NET ASSETS 2,157 3,192,143
NET ASSETS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,05570!
As Previously Stated: 24,934,088
Comected for Deferred Revenue (24,119,530)
As Resiated 864,558
NET ASSETS AT THE END OF THE VEAR S 856,701

SEENOTES TO EINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Personal Services

Payroi] Taxes

Fringe Bene(its

Insurance Waorkers Compensation
Rentand Storage

Teiephone

Travel

Repairs & Meintensnce

insunnce -Malpractice/General
Thining

Office Supplics
Other office Expensc
Librery

LHilities

Dhues and Licenscs
Contrast Services
Pralessional Services
Interes

Deprecintion

‘Total Expenses

NEW HAMPSHIRE PURLIC DEFENDER

FOR.ITS VEARS ENDED IUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

Program 12 Program 01
Servisss Adninfstrative Jaotsl Serviger, Admipisteative Jotal
$ 10315195 § 1881507 $ 15,397,102 % 13,915,027 $ 1074816 5 14,989,943
1,085,811 B 1,169,036 1,058,638 79,536 1,139,174
4,031,557 302,934 4,340,493 3,756,08L 290,200 4,046,281
56,562 4275 60,837 44,878 2843 arm
1,323,13¢ 59,332 1,381,263 1,323,063 59,212 1,382,275
161,018 11554 192,572 185,195 11,731 196,926
152,213 8,715 161,926 183m 12,423 51,724
230,037 1,389 2426 285,705 581 191,536
43,752 M9 46,545 53,958 2,193 56,151
2,706 2,662 49,368 12,546 510 13,056
52,479 3350 55,829 60,893 3,887 64,750
256,252 19079 275926 426,797 15,633 443,430
34,475 2,200 36,675 22,300 906 23,206
123,318 787 131,189 104,271 6597 110.868
73.4%4 35 72,017 76,526 3m 79,637
85,590 - 55,590 195,715 - 195,715
119,201 45919 124,130 113,458 4,898 118,356

. . , 3,260 . 3,260
229,310 - 27.270 261,240 . 261,240
$ 22491755 § 1595793 § 24091958 § 2 21930032 § 1575287 5 23415245

SEE NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Cosh Flgws {rom Operating Activitles

Increase (Decrease) in Net Asscls

Ad]ustments to Reconcite Increase {Decrease) [n Net Assets to Net

Cash Flows Provided By (Used Is) Operating Activities

Nen-cash jtems: Depreciation
D<bt Foigivensas
Law Library
Changes in Assels and Liabllities

(Increase} Deerease in: ~ Government Contract Recelvable
Deposits and Other Recaivables
Prcpaid Expenses

Increase (Decrense) in: ~ Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenscs
Deferred revenue

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash (Used) 10 Parchase Lquipment and Leaschold Improvements

Cah Flows (rom Financlag Activities ]

Borrowing on Nolc:l’ayable
‘Repayment of Capital Lease Obligation

‘Net Cash Provided By (Used'In ) Financing Activittes

Increase (Decresse) in Cash
Cash a1 Beginning of Year

Cash at Erd of Year

Supplemental Disctasures
Interest Paid

SEE NOTES YO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{11 2021

9,257 5 3192143
279,370 261,240

- (3,086,242

- 30,000
{25,593,545) 23,751,832
625 8,169
293,819 {916)
{806,956} 803,386
106,796 119,749
5,899,032 {24,119,530)
183,358 969,831
(74,343) (507.154)

- (39.120)

. (39,120}

114,015 443,557
4,826,156 4,382,599
4,940,111 $ 4,826,156
i £ e SR ——

$ 3,260
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Natyre of Operations _

New Hampshire Public Defender (NHPD) is a nan-profit corporation organized for the purpose of providing
constitutionally required legal representation for indigent individusls in the criminal justice system in the State
of New Hampshire. NHPD reccives its finding from a two-yesr contract from the New Hampshire Juct jeial
Council which is an executive branch agency of the State of New Hsmpshire.

Summary of Signifjcant Accounting Poligis
This summary of significant accounting policies of NHPD is presented to assist in understanding the financial
siatements. The financial sistements and notes are represeniations of the organization’s management, who |s

responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These eccounting policies conform to generally accepied
accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the presentation of the finencial statements.

The financial statemems of vhe NHPD have been prepared on the accrual basis of sccounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally sccepted in the United States of America.

NHPD reperts information regarding its financia) position and activitics according to two classes of nct asees:
net assets without donor testriction and ner asgets with donor restriction, Accordingly, the net assets of NHPD
and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

a) MetAssets Without Donor Reqtriction — Net assets that are no subject to donor-impased stipulations,

b)  Net Asscts With Danor Regieietion - Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed time andfor

purpose restrictions.

Governmenial and private grani amangements ere evalusted and determined if they are nonreciprocal, meaning
the granting entity has not received a direct benefit of commensurate value in exchange for the resources
provided.  [nstead, revenue is recogriized as & conditional contribution, when the barrier to entiemeny s
overcome. The barrier to entitlement is considered overcome when expenditures sssociated with each grang are
detesmined to be allowable and all other significant conditions of the grant are met.

NHPD's Sute contract covers & two-year period.

fntercst, investment gains (losses), and othier ossets and Jabilities are reponied os increages or decreases in net
assets without sestrictions unless their use is restricted,

Other revenues ore reported es increascs or decreases in net assets without restrictions unless their uze is
restricled.

Expenses are reported a3 8 decrease in net assets without donor restrictions. Gaing and losses are reported ps
increases or decreases in net assets without donor vestrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipulztion or by (aw. Expiration of net assets with donor restrictions (i.c., the donor-stipulated purpose has been
fulfilled andior the siipulated time period hes elapsed) are reposted as net assels released from restrictions.

The preparation of financia) statemenss in contomit';r with accounting principles gencraly nccepted in the
United States of Amenca (GAAP) requires management 1o make éstimates and assumplions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabllities and disclosures. Acwua! results coutd differ from these estimates.



The costs of peoviding the various programs snd other aclivities have been summarized in the Statement of
Activities. Certain costs, including salaries and benefits, rent snd wiititiés, have been sitocated among (he
programs and supporting services benefited based on management's estimates.

Stntement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows shows cash and cash equivalents provided for and used by operating, investing, and
financing activities. The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
thres months or less to be cash equivalents.

Equipment and Leacchold Ay :

Equipment and teasehold impravements are recorded st cost. Assets acquired through capital lcase agreervents
are. recorded: in accordance with fccounting priaciples genenslly eccepled in the United States of America,
which require capitalization st theif fair market value as of the date of the lease inception.

Property ucquired in excess of $1000 is capitolized and deprecisted using tho straight-line method over ke
assets estimated useful life as follows:

Camputer and-Offics Equipment 3-5Years
Property Held Under Capital Lenses 5Yeats
Leasehold Improvements 5-10 Years

All property has been acquired with funds from the State of New Ilampshire which holds a reversionaty interest
in these assets.

Expendiuim for repairs and maintenance arc cxpensed when incurred. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are
removed from the accounss, along with the related deprecistion allowance, and any goin or loss is 1ecoghized.

A summary of equipment and leaschold improvements is o5 follows:

2622 2021
Eguloment sad Leasshold Immrovements
Commuer snd Office Equipment $ 908551 § 990,634 .
Leasehold Improvements 1,204,248 1,204,248
Less Accumulated Deprecimtion {1,612,705)  (1,53),839)
Net Equipment and Leesehold Improvemenss 500,094 663,043
Copitel 1483 _
Property Held Under Capital Lease 332,054 332,054
Less Accumulated Deprecision . (311,014 (2689135)
Net Proporty Held Under Capital Lease 21,040 63,119
Total 5 _S21,134 § 736,162

Depreciation expense includes the depreciation of assets held under capital leases. Depreciation expense was
$279,370 and $261,240 for its years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
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NHPD capitalizes the cost of books and multiple volume sets of law books and estimates the salvage value to be
approximately the ssme a3 the original cost, thercfore, depreciation cxpense is not recorded. Supplemental costs
to vpdate loose leaf and other continuously updated volumes are expensed.

The law library has been acquired with funds from the Sute of New Hampshire which holds & reversiomary
interest in these assets. [n 202) management estimated $30,000 of its Iaw library is obsolete and accord ingly
the law library hag been reduced by $30,000.

Restatement of June 6, 2021 Finascial Sintements

The June 30, 2020 Findneial Staiements reported its contrect revenue as an unconditional contribution rather
than a conditional contribution pursuant to ASU 2018-08. The effect is that 2020 reverive was reported as
restricted revenue in the Statemont of Activitics instead of deferred revenue in the Statement of Financial
Position. The effect is a reduction of net assets with donar restrictions as of June 30, 2020.

The Organization has retated its beginning net sssets with doner restrictions in its 2021 Financisl Statements o
reftect modifications to comect the 2020 error.

The following reflecis the NHPD's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by smounts not
avaiteble for generel use because of contractual restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date.

2012 2021

Einancisi asse1s at yesr-end:
Cash $  4,490,17) $ 432615
State Contract Reccivable 25,593,545 -
Financinl Asscis at End of Year 30,533,716 4,826,156
Less those unavailable for general expenditares within one year, due to: '

Surplus for unexpended State Contract - 728,77
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one yesr S 30,533,716 5 4.097.385

NHPD is substantially supported by o restticied contrct, Becsuse the restriction requires ressurces to be used
in a particuler manner or in & Ruture period, NHPD must mainafn sufficient resvurces lo meet thoss
vesponsibilities pursuant to the contract. Thus, financial sssete may not be availsble for general expendituras
within.one year, As pant of the Organizalion's liquidity mansgement, it has a policy to structure its financis!
asseis fo be availsble as its general expenditures, liabilities and other cbligations becone die. NHPD maintains
cash in excess of duily requirements in its gencral operating bank rceount and cams interest,

ahle

On June 30, 2020, the organization had a 53,056,242 unsecured loan duc to the Small Business Administration
(SBA) s part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relicf and Ecanomic Security Act's Paycheck Pratection Plan (PPP),

Under the terms of the losn, sl loan payments were deforred for six months throngh October 19, 2020, wiih
monthly interest payments thereafier, at one percent par annum, and the cotire loan batance due April 19,2022,

The toan terms provide that & portion or all of the loan is forpivable to the extent thas the arganization uses loan
proceeds 1o fund qualifying payroll, rent and utilitics during a designated eight-week pevind. As of May 21
2021, the SBA has forgiven the entire $3,056,242 loan balsnce. The fosgiveness is reflected in other revenue in
the financiol starements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENYS (CONTINUED)
FORIIS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021

NHFD has entered into various operating lease agreements for its facilities and office cquipment.

Ensilities - All lease commitments for office and storage space, except. the Laconie locetion, are subject to
terminstion by NHPD if funding contingencies set forth in the leases are not met. The estimated fuxture
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Xepr Erging June 30,2022 JTotal Estimated Annunl lsa3¢e Commbtmenty
2023 $1,163,14
2024 $1,018,258
2028 $ 761,261
2026 $ 670,292
2027 $ 6350M

Rent expense, excluding storage, was $1,379.489 and $1.382,275 for ils years ended 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Equinment Lepses - The Organization has seversl equipment leass agresments for its office equipment,
Equipment lcasc expense was $69,721 and $93,334 for its year cnded 2022 and 2021, respectively.

AN unused vacation time, in sccordance with a formula, will be paid upon the 1ermination of an employee,
NHPD estimates this unused and accrued vacotion pay to be $642,227 end $67%,710 for its years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respecrively,

lagome Taxey

NHPD is exempt from Federal income taxes under Saction $01(c}(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. NHPD is
also exempt from New Hompshire income taxes and, therefore, has mede no provision for Feden) or Spare
income taxes,

NHPL evaluates all significant tax positions. As of June 30, 2022, NHPD does not believe that it has takew any
positions that would require the recording of aay additional tax fliability nor docs it believe that there are any
unrealized Lax benefits that would eisher increase or decrease within the nexi yesr,

Penaltics and interest assessed by income taxing authorities would be ineluded in operaling expenses.

Federal and State tax reiums ere generally available for examination by the taxing authorities for three years
from the date of filing. As of June 10, 2022, those yesrs ere 2019 through 2022.

NHPD sponsars & defined contribution retitement plan pursuant to Intema? Revenue Code Section 403(b) for sll
qualifying employees.

The Plan requires NHPD to niatch 50% ol exch panicipating employee’s contribution, not 16 exceed 5% of their
wages. NHPD contributed $268, 162 and $287,274 for its years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
EORITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021
Conéentrationy

Egguomic Dependency - NHPD receives all its funding under & two-year contract with the State of New
‘Hampshire which expires on Junc 30, 2023. The future existence of NHPD is solcly. dependent upon the State
renewing the conteact, The State of NH has a constitutional requirement to provide & “public defesider
program™ for individuals who cannot sfford legal representation, Msnpgement is unaware of any other
organization that cun provide these constitutionzlly mandstcd services. Accordingly, management believes jis
contract will be renswed.

Caih - NHPD maintsins its bank accounts &1 one financis] institution. The sccounts regularly exceed the
Federal Deposit Inserance Corporstion insured amount of $250,000. The exceas funds are sccused by Letters of
Credit.

Grant Recefvablc - Represents the sccond year of & two-year staie contract. As of June 30, 2022.and 2021 . the
receivable is 525,593,545 and $0 respectively.

Qiber Revenue

i 2012 2021
Debt forgiveness - note poysble duc to the Small Busincss Administration
(see note 4} $ - 513,056,242

American Rescue Plen provided funding to hire attomeys who arc
currently in private practice. This grant is limited to $900,000 and
expires June 30, 2023 175,591

Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistant Grant provided funding to hire
social workers. Tlis geant is timited to $73,000 and expires June 30, %114
2023,

The Govemor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery funding which

reimburses NHPD for technology cxpenditures incurred for eperational
¢hanges necessilated by the covid-19 pandemic. - 22L85¢

Tonl S 1BATRS $.3.32800%

SO LY — AR Bl 4 2L 2 FE RHAEN LS A

The State contract, provided by the Judicial Counil, requires NHPD to retum its unuscd grant funds which, a5
of June 30, 2021, is $728,711. In 2020 NHPD bomowrd $3,0556,242 from the Small Business Administration
(SBA) as part of the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act’s Paycheck Protection Plan {(PPP).
These funds were used to pay NHPD's payroll, rent and utilities, Accordingly, MHPD did not use its gram
funds for those expenses, Management has consulled with an attomey to determine if the $3,056,242 shbuld be
congidered as pan of the unused grant.  The attomey could not reach & conchusion nor provide an opinien

‘because of a lack of mvailable legal precedent. NHPD informed the NH Judicial Council regarding the

$3,056,242 and a$ of November 8, 2021 the Council has not determined if thoy will seek reimbursement, As of
September 22, 2022 management has not been made aware of any changes in the Cooncil's position.
Accordingly, the financinl statements do not reflcct the additional $3,056,242 as a tability.

Subscauent Events )
Management has eveluated subsequent evens through September 22, 2022, the date on which the financiai
slatements were available to be issued. There were no subsequent cvents that require recognition or additional
disclosure in these financial staternents.
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Adrienne Bradshaw

¢/ mpvtive: Near-gradunting MSW student with strong communleation skills, experience in research,
program cvaluation, data analysis, case management, assessments, and interventions seckings to
obtain employment in the lega) mental health envivonment.

f stvondion:
BACHELOR OF THE ARTS | 68/2009-12/2013 | SOUTHEASTERN LOUISIANA UNIVERSITY

MaJor: ENGLISH LITERATURE & LANGUAGE

MASTER'S DEGREE | 08/2020-12/2021 | TULANE SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK
MAJOR: SoctAL WORK

o  CERTIFICATION PROGRAM: MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION, AND FAMILY

¢ PHIALPHA HONOR SOCIETY
- EXTRACURRICULAR COURSES COMPMLETED INCLUDE TREATMENT 0f DEPRESSION AND ANXIETY, CLINICAL
TREATMENT WITH CHILDREN & ADOLESCENTS, AND CLINICAL PRACTICE IN ADDICTION.
= CoMPLETED SOCIAL WELFARE & POLICY, DIVERSITY & SOCIAL JUSTICE, HBSE I & IT, COMMUNITY ORGANIZING
AND PoLicy Apvocacy, METHoDS 1 & 1, ADvANCED METHODS T & 11, PROGRAM EVALUATION, DATA ANALYSIS &
INTERPRETATION, AND PSYCHOPATHOLDGY AND THE DSM-5.

st

Microsaft Office

Google Drive

Zoom

Writing

Presentations

Assessments & Evaluations

Creating Traatment Plans & Interventions
Research, Program Evaluation, and Date Analysis
Crigis Management ~

Polity Adherence

Mandated Reporter Training

b
ey
oo

ikl

Willingness to learn
Collaboration

Integrity & Actountabilizy
Organization

Teamwork
Lrideakthinking
Problem-solving
Rffective Communication
Dependability



Professional Experience
SOCIAL WORK INTERN § ORLEANS Pi:BLIC DEFENDERS | 0121 TO PRESENT

Case Management {including referrals to inpatient substance use treatment, [OP, sober living, FACT, etc.}
Intake evatuations and assessments

Records requests

SMART goals

Psychoeducation

Crisls Interventian

Lega) Case Mitigation

Biopsychosucial Assessments

Program Evaluatton Research

o000 000OGS

SECRETARY OF HEART HEALTH ; NORTH OAKS MEDMICAL CENYER 1 )1:2018 TO 7-2020
Check-in patients for different cardinlogy procedures

Complete chart audits

Assist in electrocardlogram orders, such as scanning final results

‘Track Cath Lab procedures via Excel spreadsheets

Manage department phone calls

Emait/phone correspondence

Assist patlents & family members

Order department supplies & track department stock

Assist revenue integrity in charging & financlal matters of the cardiology department
General administrative duties

UNIT SFCRETARY NORTH OAKS MEDICAR CENTER { 062015TO 122016

Manage unit & patient phone calls

Emaif phone correspandence

Augit

Daily unit checklisi

Assist patiemis & femily members

Schedule outpsticnt appointments & procedures

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE | THE COCOA BEAN BAKERY 106:2007°TO 05 2014

Obuain & verilfy orders
Lmail‘phone comespordence
Schedule appointments

Walksin customer service

Fulfil{ orders

Check invenory of items in house

L I B N B N )

g O rITT
Voduntecring

® CASA - Court Appoinited Special Advacate
® HOT Team - North Oaks Medical Center Voluntesr



Mary B. Hawkes -
I

Bar Memberships:
New Hampshire Bar and Maine Bar, both September, 1992

Univenrsity of Maine School of Law, Portiand, Maine- JD May 1992 )

Student Attomey, Comberland Legal Aid Clinic, Portland, Maine: clinic work in criminal defense, family
law, civil matters, and medistion. Hired for three semesters: work-study for summer 1990, full-time
employment for summer 1991, and course credit for fall 1991

University of Vermont, Burlington, Vermoit- BA Modem European History, May 1989

Editor, University of Vermont History Review

Phi Alpha Theta, National History Honors Socicty

University of Vermont Teaching Assistant, United States Race Relations

Keynote Speaker on panel for entire incoming class & Workshop Leader, University of Vermont®s
“Presidential Colloquium on Cultursl Diversity and Race Relations”

1 ca:
Director of Client Services, New Hampshire Public Defender, Concord, NH, 1998-present
Recruit, interview, hire, train, suppart, supervise, and evaluate staff investigators, staff social service
advocates, and treatment coordinators state-wide. Craft policies and procedures for investigations,
treatment coordination, and social service advocates programs, Monitor caseloads, hours, performance
and make homicide and other special case assignments. Create, lead, train, and supervise investigator
practice area groups.
Handle all other investigator, treatment coordinator, and social service advocate related issues, in the past
this included testifying at the NH legislature regarding pending legislation, grant writing and grant
mainténance for social service employees, appearing in court when investigators are testifying,
representing NHPD in irivéstigator union contract negotiations, and representing NHPD ot the National
Labor Board in response to a federal audit of the program.
Interview, hire, train, supervise and evaluate investigator intemns and social service advocate intemns
statewide. Work with universities regarding placement and cvaluation of interns.
Other current responsibilities include role as a hiring committee member for attorneys and acting as a
conflict neutral.
Responsible for new initiatives (2022-present) to facilitate cultural competency trainings for all staff,
explore creating affinity groups within NHPD, and explore the creation of a statistical tracking and
analysis system for race-based data collected by NHFPD.
Past responsibilities (from 1998-2022, under title of Director of Investigators, Social Warkers, and
Intems) also included oversight of the law intemship program and acting as conflict neutral on all
NHPD's homicides.

Staft Attorney, Department for Children, Youth and Famities, Portsmouth, NH, 1995-1998
Represented DCYF in child abuse and neglect cases and parental rights termination cases

Certificd Guardian Ad Litem 1995-1998
Assigned by Rockingham, NH Probate Court to adoption cases as a Guardian Ad Litem

Staff Attoroey, New Hampshire Public Defender, Manchester and Strathem, NH offlces
1992-1995

Represented indigent clients facing juvenile, misdemeanor, and fefony charges



SARAH ROTHMAN

EDUCATION__ .

Northeastern University School of Law, Boston, MA
1.D,, May 2007

Penasylvanin State Umversity. University Park, PA
B.A. magna cum laude in Joumalism, Philosephy, and Political Science, May 2004

EXPERIENCE.
New Hampshire Public Defender, Concord